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1             JUDGE BENN:  Pursuant to the direction of

2 the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now call Docket

3 Number 12-0458.  This is Bob Hunter versus Commonwe alth

4 Edison Company, a complaint as to billing or charge s in

5 Sandwich, Illinois.  Can I have the complainant

6 introduce himself for the record and your name and

7 address, please.

8             MR. HUNTER:  My name is Robert Hunter.  I

9 live at 1981 Amanda Drive, Sandwich, Illinois 60548 .

10             JUDGE BENN:  And counsel for Commonweal th

11 Edison?

12             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  Mark L. Goldstein ,

13 3019 Province Circle, Mundelein, Illinois 60060.  M y

14 telephone number is 847 949-1340.  With me this mor ning

15 is Erin Buechler of ComEd as well as our witness th is

16 morning Nelly Dabila.

17             JUDGE BENN:  The matter comes before th e

18 commission by Robert Hunter, a complaint as to frau d

19 against Commonwealth Edison, with the consecutive

20 estimates of his bill and the customer service issu es.

21 So I'm going to ask Mr. Hunter, before you give you r

22 opening statement I need to swear you in.
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1             Do you swear to tell the truth, the who le

2 truth, and nothing but the truth?

3             MR. HUNTER:  Yes, I do.

4             JUDGE BENN:  I'm going to ask you to el evate

5 your voice a little bit for JUDGE BENN reporter --

6             MR. HUNTER:  Yes, I do.

7             JUDGE BENN:  And then you can go ahead and

8 give us a brief opening statement about what your

9 complaint is about.

10             MR. HUNTER:  My complaint is that ComEd  is

11 randomly estimating bills for no rhyme or reason to

12 their members and I have documentation and I intend  to

13 prove that.

14             JUDGE BENN:  Okay.  Commonwealth Edison , you

15 can have an opening statement as well.

16             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  This is a cancell ed

17 re-billed complaint, your Honor.  The re-billing is

18 consistent with the actual reads that the company h as

19 had subsequent to the estimated reads which were th e

20 cause of the re-billing and so the complaint should  be

21 denied.

22             JUDGE BENN:  All right.  Mr. Hunter, ca n you
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1 tell me what caused you to bring the complaint befo re

2 the commission?

3             MR. HUNTER:  If I could present exhibit s one

4 and two to you, I can show that the meter reading o f

5 April 4th of 2012 was taken and the usage states th at it

6 was 799 kilowatt hours and two days later April 6th ,

7 2012, they said the actual usage was 6-9-7, which I

8 don't understand how to April 4th to April 6th it

9 dropped almost 500 kilowatt hours.

10             JUDGE BENN:  So did you bring that to t he

11 attention of Commonwealth Edison when you received these

12 bills?

13             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.

14             JUDGE BENN:  Could you tell us what

15 happened?

16             MR. HUNTER:  Well, I mean, the

17 representatives are very rude, very disrespectful.  I

18 mean, all they like to do is just argue with you an d no

19 matter what, you're considered wrong.  I've told --  when

20 I've gotten billed for one of my estimates, I've go ne

21 out and looked at the meter and my meter would be l ike

22 way overestimated, and explained that to them and g iven
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1 them my actual meter readings 28 times and they sti ll do

2 not put the actual meter reading on the bill.

3             JUDGE BENN:  Did anyone from Commonweal th

4 Edison come out to your residence and try to read t he

5 meter?

6             MR. HUNTER:  No.  But I believe it was 2010,

7 somewhere in 2010 -- between 2010 and 2011 the mete r was

8 actually replaced with a brand-new meter.

9             JUDGE BENN:  Were you the owner of the

10 property just prior to the meter being replaced?  D id

11 you have complaints prior to meter being replaced?

12             MR. HUNTER:  I didn't have -- prior to,  no,

13 I did not.

14             JUDGE BENN:  The answer was no?  I'm so rry.

15             MR. HUNTER:  No.  The answer is no.

16             JUDGE BENN:  Is there anything else you 'd

17 like to tell us about your complaint at this point?

18             MR. HUNTER:  That's all I have for righ t

19 now.

20             JUDGE BENN:  Have you paid any portion of

21 the disputed amount?

22             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.  I do pay the monthly
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1 total charges, total current charges.  I do pay the

2 monthly charges.

3             JUDGE BENN:  Based on these two exhibit s,

4 the disputed amount is roughly about $1200.

5             MR. HUNTER:  Actually the new estimate is

6 somewhere closer to $2000.

7             JUDGE BENN:  Before I go any further, I  know

8 that counsel -- have you had an opportunity to look  at

9 exhibits one and two that the complainant has

10 introduced?

11             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I assume, your Honor, t hat

12 the ComEd bill with the issue date of March 13th, 2 012

13 is Exhibit 1 and the bill with the issue date of Ma rch

14 15th, 2012 is Exhibit 2?

15             JUDGE BENN:  Yes.  Do you have any

16 objections to the exhibits?

17             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I've had an opportunity  to

18 look at it.  Thank you.

19             JUDGE BENN:  No objections?

20             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  No objection to those

21 exhibits.

22             JUDGE BENN:  I'm going to move your exh ibits
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1 one and two into the record, Mr. Hunter.  If you do n't

2 have anything else on your direct testimony to me, I'm

3 going to allow Mr. Goldstein to cross examine you.  Is

4 there anything else?

5             MR. HUNTER:  Not at this time.

6             JUDGE BENN:  Any questions for the witn ess,

7 Mr. Goldstein?

8             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have no cross examina tion

9 of Mr. Hunter, Judge.

10             JUDGE BENN:  Mr. Hunter, that concludes  your

11 case in chief.  I'm going to turn it over to the

12 respondent and you'll be given an opportunity after  they

13 testify to cross examine the witness after she

14 testified.

15             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I call Nillie Davillo, your

16 Honor.

17             JUDGE BENN:  Ms. Davilla, raise your ri ght

18 hand, please.

19             Do you swear to tell the truth, the who le

20 truth, and nothing but the truth?

21             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do.

22             JUDGE BENN:  Thank you.
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1             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Keep your voice up for JUDGE

2 BENN reporter and the judge and Mr. Hunter, if you

3 would.

4             THE WITNESS:  Okay.

5                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

6 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

7    Q.  Ms. Dabila, state your name for the record a nd

8 spell both your first and last name?

9    A.  My name is Nelly Dabila.  It's N-e-l-l-y, th e

10 last name is spelled D-a-b-i-l-a.

11    Q.  You are employed by Commonwealth Edison Comp any,

12 is that correct?

13    A.  That is correct.

14    Q.  What is your position with ComEd?

15    A.  I'm a senior supervisor in the billing

16 operations.

17    Q.  How long have you been employed by ComEd?

18    A.  I've been employed by ComEd for six years an d

19 I've spent one year and four months in billing

20 operations and the last five years working at the

21 customer care center.

22    Q.  Could you describe your duties and
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1 responsibilities as a senior supervisor?

2    A.  Yes.  At this time I pretty much delegate th e

3 workload to a team of billers.  I have 14 billers t hat

4 report to me.  I assign the work daily and also con duct

5 audits on their transactions, basically just to mak e

6 sure that all of the bills are going out accurately  and

7 timely.

8    Q.  In your current position you have access to the

9 books and records and customer data kept in the ord inary

10 course of ComEd's business?

11    A.  Yes, I do.

12    Q.  Are you familiar with the electric service

13 account of the complainant Bob Hunter in this matte r?

14    A.  Yes.

15    Q.  Let me hand you what has been marked as ComE d

16 Exhibit No. 1, if you have that in front of you.  C ould

17 you describe what this exhibit is?

18    A.  Exhibit 1 is an activity statement from Mr.

19 Hunter's electric service at 1981 Amanda Drive in

20 Sandwich, Illinois 60548.  Basically this statement

21 shows the electric service charges, the fees for th e

22 last two years, together with any credit or payment s
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1 that are applied to his account.

2    Q.  This document as well as the other documents  that

3 you're going to provide this morning, are they

4 Commonwealth Edison's business records kept in the

5 ordinary course of ComEd's business?

6    A.  Yes.

7    Q.  You have -- is this document as well as the other

8 documents that you're going to provide this morning

9 accurate records of ComEd kept for Mr. Hunter's acc ount?

10    A.  Yes, they are.

11    Q.  As of the date of the activity statement, Ex hibit

12 1, what is the balance due on Mr. Hunter's account?

13    A.  The balance as of the last regular read date

14 which was February 22nd of 2013 is currently $2,103 .55,

15 and the current bill that's due on March 19th, whic h are

16 the current charges, are $253.73.

17    Q.  Let me show you what's been marked as ComEd

18 Exhibit No. 2.  Do you have that in front of you?

19    A.  Yes.

20    Q.  Could you describe what that exhibit is?

21    A.  ComEd Exhibit 2 is a copy of the meter readi ng

22 history for Mr. Hunter's account.
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1    Q.  The meter reading history extends from what date

2 to what date?

3    A.  This one extends from October 20th of 2010 a nd it

4 goes all the way to -- at this time to January 25th  of

5 2013.

6    Q.  There are numerous notations with respect to

7 stating estimated reads, forced estimate, and the

8 regular company.  Could you describe for us what ea ch of

9 those terms mean?

10    A.  Sure, no problem.  The regular company read which

11 is in the fourth column, it describes any read that  the

12 ComEd employee was able to obtain was an actual rea d off

13 of the meter.  The estimate reading column is basic ally

14 just an estimate that ComEd created in the event th at

15 the actual read was not able to be obtained.  And a lso

16 you'll see the forced estimate, which a forced esti mate

17 is also an estimate that are our system creates thr ough

18 what we call SEN(phonetic), which generates an esti mate

19 automatically based on historical usage, based on t he

20 customer's historical usage.

21    Q.  There's also a term in the source column sta ting

22 customer reading.  Could you describe what that is?
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1    A.  Yes.  The customer reading is a reading that  the

2 customer can take himself.  He can call that -- he or

3 she can call that into ComEd and that also could be

4 submitted through the VRU line or it could be submi tted

5 online.

6    Q.  On August 22nd, 2012, there's a notation of a

7 customer reading for that period of time, between

8 August 22nd and September 20th 2012.  Do you see th at?

9    A.  Yes.

10    Q.  That customer reading was taken, was that

11 billed -- was that billed by ComEd based upon that

12 customer reading?

13    A.  Yes, it was.  And it was in line at the time  that

14 it was called into the VRU on September 20th of 201 2,

15 that customer reading was in line with the usage th at

16 was being billed at that time.

17    Q.  When did the customer actually make that rea ding?

18    A.  That was called into the VRU on September 20 th of

19 2012.

20    Q.  Let me show you what's been marked as ComEd

21 Exhibit 3.  Do you have that in front of you?

22    A.  Yes.
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1    Q.  Could you describe what is shown on this exh ibit?

2    A.  ComEd Exhibit 3 is a display of our system.  It's

3 the meter information that we have on record for th e

4 customer.  So basically it has the customer's meter

5 number, 141469879, and it has any instructions or

6 remarks that the customer may have left with us tha t the

7 meter reader has access to when they go out to read  the

8 meter.  So for Mr. Hunter's account, the instructio ns

9 that are in the remarks for the meter reader to vie w is

10 three dogs, one Dob, one pit bull, call the day bef ore,

11 put dogs in, and it has Bob, the phone number of 63 0

12 688-5864.  Leave message, do not enter yard, very b ad

13 pit, chronic.

14    Q.  What is the date of this meter information, is

15 there is a date on that?

16    A.  No.  This is just standard.  If there's any

17 changes made, then it'll automatically view when we  pull

18 it up.

19    Q.  So that the meter reader has indicated that there

20 are -- that Mr. Hunter has three dogs, is that corr ect?

21    A.  That was either indicated by the reader or t he

22 customer himself called that in to give us that
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1 information.

2    Q.  Could you describe what the billing process is

3 for Commonwealth Edison's residential accounts when  an

4 account is estimated and subsequently an actual rea ding

5 is obtained by the company?

6    A.  Yes.  Once an actual read is obtained, so th at's

7 a regular reading that the technician was able to

8 obtain, the ComEd billing department will review th e

9 account to see if the bill needs to be adjusted.  T he

10 billing department will review the most recent, act ual,

11 or regular reading and also review the previous reg ular

12 reading.  Those two readings are totalled and then an

13 average of the two readings are obtained.  We get t he

14 daily usage obtained by dividing the total of the t wo

15 readings by the number of days in between those two

16 readings.  That average is then used to adjust the

17 estimated reading, either up or down on the usage.

18    Q.  In some cases ComEd may have overestimated t he

19 usage and in some cases ComEd may have underestimat ed

20 the usage, is that correct?

21    A.  That is correct.

22    Q.  You have read Mr. Hunter's complaint, have y ou
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1 not?

2    A.  Yes.

3    Q.  You've heard his testimony this morning with

4 respect to his complaints about estimated billings.   Can

5 you explain in your review of Mr. Hunter's account how

6 the account was billed and was there any billing er ror

7 with respect to the account?

8    A.  There was no billing error identified on thi s

9 account.  I'm going to use ComEd exhibit number one  just

10 to explain -- actually one and two, to explain the

11 billing on the account.

12             JUDGE BENN:  Okay.

13             THE WITNESS:  So on September 22nd 2011 ,

14 which is on ComEd Exhibit No. 2, you will see in th e

15 column where it says regular company, 42798, ComEd was

16 able to obtain a regular company read on that date of

17 the 4-2-7-9-8.  Based on that reading, ComEd billin g

18 department cancelled the bills back to re-bill base d on

19 the actual usage.

20             JUDGE BENN:  I'm sorry.  Can I stop you ?

21 You're on which exhibit, your Exhibit 1?

22             THE WITNESS:  On Exhibit No. 2.  It wil l
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1 show the regular --

2             JUDGE BENN:  ComEd Exhibit No. 2?

3             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry?

4             JUDGE BENN:  ComEd Exhibit No. 2?

5             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

6             JUDGE BENN:  I'm sorry.  Go ahead, plea se.

7             THE WITNESS:  Just to repeat.  ComEd Ex hibit

8 No. 2 on 9-22, 2011 you'll see the regular company read

9 of 4-2-7-9-8.  This exhibit goes back two years, so

10 you'll see where it began, we cancelled back for a year

11 from October 20th, 2010, we began canceling and

12 re-billing.  Based on this regular read of 9-22, 20 11,

13 and the last regular company read which is May 24th  of

14 2010 and the reading on May 24th of 2010 was 1-1-4- 6-2.

15             Now, to do this the biller began the

16 adjustments on the account for one year, using that  read

17 that I just mentioned, the May 24, 2010 regular rea ding

18 and the 9-22 2011 regular reading.  The total amoun t of

19 kilowatts that were between those two dates were 31 ,336

20 kilowatts.

21             JUDGE BENN:  Excuse me.  Can I stop you ?

22 You said you were going back to May 24th, 2010?
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1             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

2             JUDGE BENN:  I don't see that on this

3 exhibit.

4             THE WITNESS:  This exhibit only goes ba ck in

5 our system for -- until October 20th, 2010.  So if you

6 go to Exhibit No. 4 --

7             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Which has not been

8 introduced yet, Judge, but if we could.

9             JUDGE BENN:  Yes, please.

10             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Perhaps what we ought t o do

11 before you answer that question, Ms. Dabila, is go back

12 to Exhibit No. 4 and explain what that exhibit is.

13             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  So on Exhibit No. 4,

14 this is a copy of -- it's a screen print of the not es

15 that the biller that worked the account actually ty ped

16 into the system when they cancelled the service.  S o at

17 the top you'll see where it's highlighted cancel se rvice

18 with a date of 9-29 2011.  This is the date that th e

19 biller actually worked on Mr. Hunter's account and the

20 context or the comments that the biller put in the

21 account basically says that she canceled the low

22 estimated billing back through 11-18 2010 to back b ill
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1 for one year, and she's referring to the regular re ad of

2 May 24th, 2010, which was 1-1-4-6-2 and timed that with

3 the current reading on 9-22-11 of 4-2-7-9-8.  So

4 basically the equal signs will show you the total u sage

5 that was used between those two regular company rea ds,

6 comes to an average of 64 kilowatts per day and she

7 begins to type the ones that she re-billed.  So

8 re-billed the billing period of 11-18, 1-25, 3-24, 5-23,

9 et cetera.  So she billed that and raised the ATB s o

10 that she's billing that to the 9-22 2011 with the

11 regular read.

12 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

13    Q.  What does ATB stand for?

14    A.  The ATB stands for attempt to bill.

15    Q.  So the 9-29-11 cancel service which is

16 highlighted on ComEd Exhibit No. 4, that refers to what

17 specifically?

18    A.  The 9-29 is basically the date that the bill er

19 worked this account.  So the read came in on 9-22-1 1, it

20 comes into the billing department and she received it on

21 9-29 2011 and that's when she canceled the account based

22 on the two regular company reads that were taken.
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1             JUDGE BENN:  I'm sorry.  Go ahead.

2 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

3    Q.  Have you finished your explanation of how th e

4 account was cancelled and re-billed?

5    A.  Yes.  I can go in more detail, just a little  more

6 detail, if we go back to Exhibit No. 2 real quick?

7    Q.  That's right.  So would I be correct that th e

8 biller re-billed usage each month from November 18t h

9 2010 to January 25th, 2011, and so on and so forth,  as

10 set forth on ComEd Exhibit No. 1?

11    A.  That is correct.

12    Q.  This screen shot that is ComEd Exhibit No. 4 ,

13 could you describe this in more detail, what it act ually

14 is?

15    A.  Yes.  I mean, Exhibit No. 4 basically is the

16 biller's contact stating what she did.  And if you refer

17 to Exhibit No. 2, you'll see all of the loads that show

18 cancelled, so all the loads that showed cancel is t he

19 amount that -- I mean the loads that she's cancelin g the

20 usage.  And then where it shows billed is the re-bi lling

21 that took place all the way up to the 9-22 2011 reg ular

22 read.
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1    Q.  That cancel and re-billing is also reflected  on

2 ComEd Exhibit 1, is that correct?

3    A.  That is also reflected on ComEd Exhibit 1,

4 correct.

5    Q.  The Exhibit shows again, to repeat, the tota l

6 usage for the particular period and the average of 64

7 kilowatt hours per day, that was used for the

8 re-billing, is that right?

9    A.  That's right.

10    Q.  Exhibit 4 shows that there's a reading of

11 1-1-4-6-2, is that right?

12    A.  Yes.  1-1-4-6-2 is the regular read that was

13 taken on May 24th, 2010 that was used for the

14 calculation of the re-billing.

15    Q.  What is the total amount of the re-billed or  back

16 bill?

17    A.  I'm going to refer you to Exhibit No. 1 for this

18 answer and on Exhibit No. 1, under October 3rd, 201 1,

19 you will see the re-billing that took place and the re's

20 a line item that says regular bill and it shows

21 $1,356.52.  This is the re-billed that was sent out  to

22 Mr. Hunter for the re-billing of 11 bill periods.  So
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1 the actual re-bill amount was $2,548.87.  However, all

2 the payments that he's made for this time period th at

3 was cancelled and then re-billed were subtracted fr om

4 that balance.  So his bill that was sent out, in ot her

5 words, the re-billing was a difference of $1,356.52 .

6    Q.  Based upon your review of Mr. Hunter's accou nt

7 and your experience with billing, would you say tha t the

8 estimated billing is in line with the actual billin g of

9 Mr. Hunter's accounts?

10    A.  Yes.  I believe that is in line with the cur rent

11 regular readings that we've obtained, even througho ut

12 2012 and all the way current to this year.

13    Q.  Is there anything else you'd like to add to your

14 testimony?

15    A.  The only thing I would like to point out is for

16 in 2012 on Exhibit No. 2, it does show that we had

17 pretty consistent regular reads from, like, Februar y

18 24th, 2012 all the way to August 22nd.  And then th e

19 most current regular read that we've had on Mr. Hun ter's

20 property is one on January 25th, 2013 and all of th e

21 reads are progressive.  So when the customer is usi ng

22 service, the meter goes progressive, the reads are
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1 progressive.  And I don't see any issues with the u sage

2 that's been billed or with the reads that we've bee n

3 obtaining.

4             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing further of

5 the witness.  I would move into evidence ComEd's

6 Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 4.

7             JUDGE BENN:  Do you have any objections  to

8 moving the exhibits into the record, Mr. Hunter?

9             MR. HUNTER:  No, I do not.

10             JUDGE BENN:  Do you have any questions for

11 the witness?

12             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.  I do.

13                    CROSS EXAMINATION

14 BY MR. HUNTER:

15    Q.  April through August of 2012, through your o wn

16 bills you stated that you're able to get an actual meter

17 reading.  Why were you able to get an actual meter

18 reading then and then prior to that you from 10-20,  on

19 ComEd Exhibit 2, 10-20 you -- 10-20 of 2010 to 9-22 ,

20 2011, almost all those are estimates or forced

21 estimates?  Why weren't you able to get actual mete r

22 readings then, if you're able to get actual meter
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1 readings in 2012?

2             THE WITNESS:  Judge, I wouldn't be able  to

3 answer that because I'm not in meter reading.  So I

4 don't know what the meter reader, what issues he ha d.

5 The only thing I can refer to is just the meter rea ding

6 window which is our Exhibit 3, just basically stati ng

7 there three dogs, one Doberman, one pit bull, that' s in

8 the home.  So that's the only thing that I could th ink

9 of that would prevent us from getting access to the

10 meter, but I'm not a meter reader myself so I can't

11 answer that clearly.

12 BY MR. HUNTER:

13    Q.  Is it possible that your meter reader or you r

14 computer system that estimates the bills, estimated

15 the bills -- overestimated the bills or estimated t he

16 bills wrong?

17    A.  No.

18    Q.  It's not possible?  Why is that not possible ?

19    A.  Well, we basically just go from the regular

20 company reads to the regular company reads.  So we could

21 just calculate the usage between those two reads an d

22 even forward, like even if you turn the page and lo ok at
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1 some of the more current ones, for example, the two

2 exhibits that you actually turned in, the one that' s

3 from March 13th and March 15th, this was a bill per iod

4 that was cancelled.  This is for two months of serv ice.

5 So these bills are from December 22nd to January an d

6 then January to February.  And actually during this

7 re-billed, the original bill that we sent you was - - for

8 those bill periods was $322.42.  And once we obtain  the

9 regular reads, the re-billing for that month, for

10 October -- I'm sorry, for December 22nd to January 25th

11 was lower, it was $102.39.  So this actually worked  to

12 your benefit because the bill came out lower.  It w ent

13 from $322.42 to $102.39.  So what happened there is  we

14 overestimated and when we got the regular read we

15 re-billed it at a lower cost.

16    Q.  But your bill states that it's an actual met er

17 reading, not an estimate?

18    A.  Right.  If you go to the --

19    Q.  You just said it was an estimate?

20    A.  No, no.  The original bill that we sent you was

21 estimated.  But we had a regular read of 4-8-8-0-3 on

22 December 22nd and then we received another regular read
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1 on 2-25, 2012 of 5-0-2-9-1, and that was the reason  for

2 this cancel re-billed on March 13th and March 15th.

3    Q.  If you refer to ComEd Exhibit No. 2, 10-20 2 010

4 estimated all the way up to 8-22, 2011.  It goes --  to

5 your statement, those meter readings were all estim ated,

6 is that correct?

7    A.  Yes.

8    Q.  Can you give me the definition of an estimat e,

9 please?

10    A.  An estimate is created -- it's basically an

11 estimate, it's not an actual read.  So it's somethi ng

12 that either the system or the biller will create ba sed

13 on historical usage.  You look at your historical u sage

14 and come up with an estimate of what we think you m ay

15 have used, but we wouldn't really know the true rea ding

16 until we get the regular company read.

17    Q.  I'd like to state that through "Your

18 Dictionary.com", the definition of estimate is an

19 opinion or guess, something --

20             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, I'm going to obj ect

21 to this.  I have no problem with Mr. Hunter testify ing

22 as to what he believes an estimate means, but he sh ould
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1 be asking questions of Ms. Dabila and not making

2 statements.

3             JUDGE BENN:  I'm going to overrule your

4 objection and take judicial notice of the dictionar y

5 definition of estimate.

6             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Can I have the source o f

7 that and see what --

8             JUDGE BENN:  I think he just said it, b ut do

9 you have it printed out?

10             MR. HUNTER:  I do not have it printed o ut,

11 but you can go to Your Dictionary dot com and look that

12 up.

13             JUDGE BENN:  Your Dictionary dot com is

14 where you got it from?

15             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.

16             JUDGE BENN:  And it's from the Internet

17 source?

18             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.

19             JUDGE BENN:  I'm going to take judicial

20 notice of the definition.  I'm going to -- yes, I'm

21 going to take judicial notice of the definition sta ted

22 by Mr. Hunter, since he's named the source.  But, M r.
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1 Hunter, I'm going to have to ask you to ask specifi c

2 questions of the witness.  Do you have any other

3 questions for --

4             MR. HUNTER:  Yes, I do.

5 BY MR. HUNTER:

6    Q.  Do you agree that at certain times of the ye ar

7 you use certain amount of -- different amounts of p ower?

8    A.  Yes.

9    Q.  Is it possible that year to year those diffe rent

10 amounts at the same time of the year could be diffe rent

11 amounts?  I'm sorry --

12    A.  Yes.

13    Q.  Use different amounts?

14    A.  Uh-huh.

15    Q.  Is it possible that I used less than your cu rrent

16 estimate, less power than your current estimate?

17    A.  Is it possible that you used less than the

18 estimate?

19    Q.  Yes.

20    A.  It could be possible.

21    Q.  Has ComEd ever mailed, like, any type of

22 paperwork to be filled out and mailed back to ComEd  as
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1 far as recording a meter reading?

2             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Are you talking about y our

3 account in particular, Mr. Hunter, or just generall y?

4             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.  My account in partic ular.

5 BY MR. HUNTER:

6    Q.  I mean, have you mailed me any paperwork to be

7 filled out and returned to you as far as recording a

8 meter reading?

9    A.  I don't know.

10    Q.  Have you scheduled any appointments to have

11 somebody come and read the meter?

12    A.  I didn't look for that information, if we

13 scheduled any appointments.  You can always call in  and

14 schedule appointments if you're interested in havin g,

15 like, a check redone.  Then we do send techs out to  do

16 check reads if you want to schedule an appointment with

17 us, you can call in and schedule one.  I didn't not ice

18 that on your account, but I didn't look for that.

19             MR. HUNTER:  I have no further question s.

20             JUDGE BENN:  I have a couple of questio ns.

21             Is it your practice to contact the cust omer

22 after so many months, to try to read the meter if y ou
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1 have a series of forced estimates taking place on t he

2 account?

3             THE WITNESS:  We do have certain letter s

4 that do go out, it's called a consecutive letter,

5 estimate letters, so we do have some of those that go

6 out.  Or if the customer is calling in, we also

7 encourage them to read their own meter if we have n ot

8 been able to get access to the meter, for whatever

9 reason, then we do encourage the customer to read t heir

10 own meter and call in a reading to us so we can go ahead

11 and bill with the customer's reading.  So, for exam ple,

12 like on September 20th of 2012, Mr. Hunter did call  in a

13 meter reading through the VRU.  That can always be done

14 any time throughout the year.  If the bill shows

15 estimate on the bill, then the customer can call in  a

16 reading themselves and we will walk them through ho w to

17 read the meter.

18             JUDGE BENN:  Is there a standing timeli ne

19 that would trigger a contact to the customer to rea d the

20 meter or to encourage them to read the meter?

21             THE WITNESS:  No.

22             JUDGE BENN:  Is there standard procedur es in



36

1 place -- well, strike that.  We made some notations  here

2 in your exhibits about access to the property regar ding

3 animals that Mr. Hunter has.  Is there any procedur e at

4 Commonwealth Edison when you discover your access i s

5 limited or prohibited due to something going on at the

6 property?  Is there a letter that goes out, is the

7 procedure to contact the customer?  Do you do anyth ing

8 special when it comes to that?

9             THE WITNESS:  I don't know.  It might b e a

10 question for meter reading, but I'm not quite sure.

11             JUDGE BENN:  So you're not sure, okay.  As

12 you've testified to today, are you implying that th e

13 property was not accessible because of the animals?

14             THE WITNESS:  Correct.  I mean that's w hat

15 we have in our meter reading window and Exhibit No.  3 is

16 basically -- just basically that's in the instructi ons

17 in the remarks, is just stating that he does have t hree

18 dogs, one Doberman, one pit bull.  The meter reader s

19 feel like they cannot get to the backyard or to the

20 outside meter where the meter is located, then they  will

21 not read the meter for that month, they'll try to g et it

22 on the next reading.
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1             JUDGE BENN:  To your knowledge, do the meter

2 readers note and state they can't access a property  and

3 reasons why?

4             THE WITNESS:  Yes.

5             JUDGE BENN:  That's all the questions I 'm

6 going to ask.  I'm going to ask Mr. Hunter if you h ave

7 any other questions for Mr. Dabila?

8             MR. HUNTER:  I do not at this time.  Bu t if

9 I'm allowed to, I would like to state, though, when  I

10 observed the meter reader -- if I'm allowed to?

11             JUDGE BENN:  I'll get back to you, and find

12 out if there's any redirect from ComEd.

13             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have one question on

14 redirect, Judge.

15                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION

16 BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

17    Q.  Ms. Dabila, was the true-up or re-billing of  Mr.

18 Hunter's account based upon actual readings of his

19 meter?

20    A.  Yes.  The re-billing was based on actual rea dings

21 that we were able to obtain.

22             JUDGE BENN:  When were those actual rea dings
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1 again, please?

2             THE WITNESS:  The re-billed was based o n the

3 actual read that we received on September 22nd of 2 011.

4             JUDGE BENN:  September 22nd of 2011 and  what

5 other actual date did you use?

6             THE WITNESS:  The other one was May 24t h of

7 2010.

8             JUDGE BENN:  Could you please explain, just

9 for the record, how you calculate a re-billed based  on

10 the actual read?

11             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  We take the two

12 readings, so for example the May 24th, 2010 reading ,

13 which was 1-1-4-6-2 and we also take the most curre nt

14 reading, the 9-22, 2011 reading which was 4-2-7-9-8 .  We

15 subtract the 1-1-4-6-2 from the current reading and  the

16 usage that is identified between those two readings , we

17 divide that by the number of days within those two time

18 periods.  So we divide that to come up with an aver age

19 daily use that the customer has per day and we re-b ill

20 each month, month by month, until we get to the cur rent

21 reading of the September 22nd, 2011.  So once we di vide

22 that usage per day, we re-bill based on the average
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1 daily use between those two days.

2             JUDGE BENN:  I was going to ask a quest ion

3 of Mr. Hunter.  Mr. Hunter, the two actual dates th at

4 were stated that actual reads took place, to your

5 recollection do you recall whether they called ahea d of

6 time to have you remove your dogs or any of these t hings

7 that were impeding the meter reader from getting on  the

8 property?

9             MR. HUNTER:  Not that I remember.  They

10 rarely called.  They have called maybe three or fou r

11 times the whole time I've been at the residence.  I

12 mean, they rarely try to contact me.

13             JUDGE BENN:  When they did call, was it

14 regarding trying to read your meter because the ani mals

15 were present?

16             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.

17             JUDGE BENN:  I'm sorry?

18             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.

19             JUDGE BENN:  What happened when you rec eived

20 that call?  What did you do?

21             MR. HUNTER:  I either called in the act ual

22 meter reading or I -- they've given me a little doo r
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1 hanger slip to fill out the meter reading and hang it

2 back on the door.

3             JUDGE BENN:  Over this timeline that we 've

4 been discussing here, to your recollection, Mr. Hun ter,

5 how many times has that occurred where you've gotte n

6 some notice that they couldn't read the meter?

7             MR. HUNTER:  To my recollection, it's o nly

8 happened twice.

9             JUDGE BENN:  Mr. Goldstein, just really

10 quickly since I've asked some questions of Mr. Hunt er,

11 do you have any follow-up cross examination questio ns

12 for him?

13             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have no other questio ns,

14 Judge.

15             JUDGE BENN:  I think I have one more

16 question for Ms. Dabila -- I might have already cov ered

17 it.

18             I think I might have asked you this, bu t

19 just so I can hear it again on the record.  Is ther e a

20 procedure or some sort of rule of thumb that ComEd

21 follows, like your customer service department, for  the

22 meter readers when they encounter things that stops  them



41

1 from entering the property, such as animals, is the re

2 some rule of thumb?

3             MS. DABILA:  Well, like I mentioned ear lier,

4 I know we do send, not necessarily just for animals , but

5 for any type of access issues we do send customers

6 letters that's like consecutive -- it's called

7 consecutive estimate letters.  So we send those jus t

8 saying that we've had several estimates that we hav en't

9 been able to get a reading.  That encourages the

10 customer to either call in a reading or set up an

11 appointment with us to send the tech out on the day  that

12 they're available.  And actually Mr. Hunter brought  up

13 another point, is that the meter reader may leave a  door

14 card for the customers who actually take their own

15 reading and leave it on the door so that the meter

16 reader might be able to gather that on the next rea d

17 date.

18             JUDGE BENN:  How many months go by befo re

19 the system generates or triggers this access letter ?

20             MS. DABILA:  I would have to look that up.

21 I don't know.

22             JUDGE BENN:  You're not sure, okay.
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1             Any redirect?

2             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else, Ju dge.

3             JUDGE BENN:  We're going to go into clo sing

4 arguments.  So, Mr. Hunter, you can just briefly ex plain

5 again why you believe you're entitled to relief und er

6 your complaint.

7             JUDGE BENN:  I believe that their estim ates

8 are incorrect.  I mean, they were able to get actua l

9 meter readings at any time.  They could have contac ted

10 me, they could have knocked on the door, they could  have

11 called me.  They could have done a number of things  to

12 get ahold of me to get the actual meter reading, bu t

13 instead they just choose to estimate the bill and I

14 believe that they overestimated it and estimated it

15 incorrectly.

16             JUDGE BENN:  Just really last, how many

17 times do you recall being called on the phone about

18 getting into your property?

19             MR. HUNTER:  I recall only twice.

20             JUDGE BENN:  Would that have been in

21 relation to the two times that ComEd did get into t he

22 property?
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1             MR. HUNTER:  Yes.

2             JUDGE BENN:  Closing argument for you, Mr.

3 Goldstein?

4             MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  I think that the

5 actual readings that ComEd took clearly show that t he

6 estimates were too low and the re-billing is more i n

7 line with Mr. Hunter's actual usage, it's correct a nd

8 proper, and the complaint should be denied.

9             JUDGE BENN:  If there's nothing else, I  will

10 mark this matter heard and taken and I'll wait serv icing

11 on the parties what's called a proposed order, give  the

12 parties time to respond to that and then there will  be a

13 recommendation made to the commission regarding the

14 outcome of this complaint.

15             If there's nothing else, the docket is

16 marked heard and taken and we're finished for the d ay.

17 I thank you all for your time.  We're off the recor d.

18             (Adjourned at 12:00 o'clock p.m.)
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